Wiltshire Council Where everybody matters

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 DECEMBER 2012 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER.

Present:

Cllr Chuck Berry (Substitute), Cllr Trevor Carbin (Chairman), Cllr Nigel Carter, Cllr Tony Deane (Vice Chairman), Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Peter Hutton, Cllr Ricky Rogers and Cllr Judy Rooke

Also Present:

Cllr Allison Bucknell and Cllr John Noeken

42 Apologies

Apologies were received by Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Peter Doyle, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr Carole Soden and Cllr Pip Ridout as Lead member of the Budget Task Group.

Cllr Chuck Berry substituted for Cllr Jonathon Seed.

43 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 October 2012 were approved and signed as a correct record.

44 **Declarations of Interest**

No declarations of interest were received.

45 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's Announcements.

46 **Public Participation**

There was no public participation.

47 **Optimising the Procurement Service Report**

A report on the work of the new Procurement Board was circulated with the agenda. The Interim Head of Procurement, Julian Ingram, and responsible Cabinet member, Cllr John Noeken, were in attendance to present the report and answer questions arising.

In presenting the report clarification was made that its content reflected the considerable work that had taken place to ensure the Corporate Procurement Unit (CPU) remained fit for purpose. Although the Category Management approach to future procurement was agreed by the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) in October it was understood that support from all services would be required to ensure this approach remained effective.

Ensuing discussions included recognition of the positive work already undertaken and the benefits of the Category Management. However it was felt that further scrutiny as the transformation process was implemented would be beneficial, noting that in some other local authorities (such as Hull and Birmingham) Category Management had initially failed to deliver the benefits expected upon implementation.

It was proposed that to aid the Committee further in its understanding of the risks, that the structure and implementation of the new approach undertaken by other local authorities should be investigated further, including those where Category Management had been implemented successfully, such as Leicester Council. The Committee, also proposed that further reporting on how the benefits were being realised and risks overcome would be required.

The Director of Finance confirmed that discussions with several authorities had taken place prior to submitting the proposals for consideration and suggested that members would benefit more from visiting the CPU as the system was progressing.

The Cabinet member commented that this would need to be time specific to ensure effective scrutiny was undertaken noting that the approach was already being piloted. This would ensure potential risks would be identified and remedied before full roll-out across the authority.

The Committee proposed that Procurement Strategy remain an item on the forward work programme, noting that local elections would be taking place during its implementation.

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet member and officers for attending and the Committee resolved as follows:

Resolved:

- 1) That Procurement Strategy would remain on the Forward Work Programme of the Committee to ensure regular scrutiny at timespecific dates to be identified by the Cabinet member;
- 2) That a half-day session with the Procurement leads would be arranged in January 2013 to allow Committee members the opportunity to further their understanding of potential risks of the structure, to include details of other authorities where category management had been implemented; and
- 3) The collective views expressed at the above session would be reported to CLT and at the next meeting of the Committee on 28 February.

48 SAP report

A report on progress made on SAP development since April 2011 was circulated with the agenda. The Service Director Business Services, Jacqui White, and responsible Cabinet member, Cllr John Noeken, were in attendance to present the report and to answer questions arising.

In presenting the report the Service Director confirmed that progress on the usage of SAP had been and continued to be made to ensure the system remained effective for the authority.

It was acknowledged that significant progress had been made, specifically within the last 12 months, although concern was raised in relation to legacy systems, such as Payroll. Confirmation was made that all data from the system had been worked into a database accessible by the Payroll team and to be accessible for archive purposes. The old pre-unitary systems had now been decommissioned and there was therefore no costs assigned for these systems within the financial year.

Upon receiving questions in relation to why only a small proportion of contracts were loaded onto the SAP system, clarification was made that the system was capable of receiving all contract information as long as it was configured correctly. Work was being undertaken with the Interim Head of Procurement to ensure the system worked with the procurement structure and would fit the future business need. Appropriate category coding was being rationalised to ensure compatibility for future loading of procurement contracts.

Clarification was provided that work concluded, as identified within the initial Project Initiation Document (PID) was highlighted within Appendices A-C and projects in progress highlighted within Appendix D. The development projects currently being investigated were detailed within Appendix F and were being

developed to ensure the software continued to meet the needs of future business use.

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet member and officers for attending and the Committee resolved as follows:

Resolved:

To note the improvements and developments made to date and the work that is currently planned and under development by the Business Services team.

49 Sharepoint Report

A report on progress on the development of the Corporate Programme and Projects Portal solution built on the SharePoint 2010 platform for Wiltshire Council was circulated with the agenda. Karen Perrett, ICT Programme Manager, and responsible Cabinet member, Cllr John Noeken, were in attendance to present the report and to answer questions arising.

In presenting the report the ICT Programme Manager confirmed that Sharepoint was the system to enable Project Managers to manage projects based around the Prince2 principles. Although accessibility of the system was limited to project management staff, clarification was provided that information would be made available at any point for members as required.

Resolved:

To thank officers and the Cabinet member for the report.

50 Task Group Update

The Committee noted the written updates on Task Group activity as circulated with the agenda and the following additional information:

Budget Task Group

Apologies were provided by the lead member of the Task Group who was unable to attend the meeting. However, the Scrutiny Manager confirmed that the annual Joint Budget Scrutiny meeting would be held on 7 February 2013 at the Civic Hall, Trowbridge and that all members were encouraged to attend.

Campus and Operational Delivery Programme (CAOD) Task Group

Clarification was made that the position paper, as mentioned within the Update in relation to car parking, had been circulated to Task Group members by the Scrutiny Officer on 6 December. A brief summary of the views received from the Group included:

- That there were insufficient spaces for members at County Hall, often taken by non members.
- Whether communities and businesses had been consulted on the availability of public spaces to council staff and the impact on local trade that could transpire as a result.
- Complaints from customers about the lack of parking for the new library.
- The untenable situation at County Hall due to excessive pressure on the accommodation. A clear transport policy was needed.
- Once the outcomes of the data-gathering exercise (due to conclude in March) were known and options for consideration on the table further scrutiny should be undertaken

Ensuing debate included the need for a cultural change across the council and that, should policing be required, that this would need to apply to all.

51 Scrutiny Representation on Project Boards and Groups

Updates on activity were presented with the agenda. This included a Councillor Briefing Note for the Wiltshire Online Programme.

52 Task Group Protocol Refresh

The Committee resolved at its meeting held in October 2012 to undertake a refresh of the Task Group Protocol in consultation with members and the Constitution Focus Group.

As outlined on the agenda, following consultation a copy of the revised Protocol is expected to be presented to the Committee for consideration and endorsement at its next meeting on 28 February 2013.

53 Forward Work Programme

i) The Chairman of each Select Committee, where present, provided updates on activity as follows:

Health Select Committee

A request was made and endorsement given to the establishment of two Task Groups and a Rapid Scrutiny Exercise as follows:

Public Health Task Group Transfer of Care Task Group Continence Services Rapid Scrutiny

Environment Select Committee

No further updates were provided although clarification made that it would be proposed that the Committee, at its meeting to be held in April, would review work undertaken to date and look to propose a programme of work for consideration by the re-appointed Environment Select Committee post election.

Children's Select Committee

The Chairman was unable to attend the meeting. The Senior Scrutiny Officer with responsibility for this Committee circulated an update from the meeting held on 29 November covering Review of the Young People's Support Service, Adoption Agency Annual Report 2011-12 and Task Groups.

ii) The Committee noted the Forward Work Programme and additional information provided as detailed below:

The Vice-Chairman of the Committee proposed that the allocation of social housing should be a subject for further scrutiny and be added to the Forward Work Programme. As Cllr Mike Hewitt was a member of the Housing Tenants Panel, it was proposed that he should liaise with officers as the scrutiny representative whilst the Committee undertake further investigations on developments in Housing Services.

The Committee should also request that Cllr Mike Hewitt be allowed an observer place on the Housing Allocations Board.

Resolved:

To pursue the above requests.

54 Urgent Items

There were no urgent items considered.

55 Date of next meeting

28 February 2013.

(Duration of meeting: 10.30 am - 12.35 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Sharon Smith, of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 718378, e-mail <u>sharonl.smith@wiltshire.gov.uk</u>

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115